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Securities and Exchange Commission

100 F Street, N.E.

Mailstop 3561

Washington, D.C. 20549

Attention:  H. Christopher Owings
Scott Anderegg

Re:  Ulta Salon, Cosmetics & Fragrance, Inc. — Amendment No. 7
Registration Statement on Form S-1
File No. 333-144405

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of Ulta Salon, Cosmetics & Fragrance, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the ‘Company”), we hereby submit responses of the Company to comments received from
the Staff in a letter from H. Christopher Owings, dated October 23, 2007 (the “Comment Letter”). In addition, we have reflected the changes noted below in Amendment
No. 7 (the “Amendment”) to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (the ‘“Registration Statement”), including certain exhibits. A courtesy copy of this letter is
being submitted to the Staff by hand delivery.

1. We note your response to comment 2 in our letter dated October 19, 2007. We further note that your disclosure of the name of the natural person(s), public
entities, majority-owned subsidiaries of public entities or registered investment companies who have investment and/or voting control over the respective
selling stockholders is incomplete or unclear as indicated below;

. You have provided no beneficial ownership information as to Feigin Trading Co.
Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have deleted Feigin Trading Co. from the “Selling stockholder” table. See page 101.

. Footnote (2) to the Selling Stockholder table appears to refer to the beneficial ownership of one “entity,” however, this footnote has been attributed to
several selling stockholders; and
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Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have revised footnote 2 to clarify that the footnote applies to more than one entity. Please see page 101.

. With respect to Bank of America Ventures (footnote 4), Bank of America Capital Corporation (footnote 4), Jewish Communal Fund (footnote 13), JP
Morgan Chase Bank (footnote 14) and Appomattox Foundation (footnote 16), your disclosures are incomplete in that they do not identify the
beneficial owners of the respective shares. We note your indication that “no one person acting alone has investment and voting power as to these
shares,” however, the fact does not avail you of the requirement that you disclose the persons with beneficial ownership of such shares.

Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have amended footnotes 4 and 13 to include the information requested. Please see pages 101 — 102. In
addition, we advise the Staff that we are using best efforts to obtain the information requested as to footnotes 14 and 16. We intend to file an amendment to the
Registration Statement as soon as possible after receiving the remaining information.

2. We note that you have submitted a requested effectiveness for 4:00 p.m. on October 24, 2007. In connection with your request you have provide certain
representations and we note that in the third representation that you indicate that you will not assert our declaring you effective as a defense. Your third
representation should also represent that you may not assert staff comments as a defense. Please revise your request accordingly.

Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have revised the acceleration request, as indicated, and have resubmitted the request.
If you have any questions regarding the foregoing responses or the enclosed Amendment or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at (312) 876-
7680 or Seth Diehl at (312) 876-7634.
Very truly yours,

/s/ Christopher D. Lueking
Christopher D. Lueking
of LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

Enclosures

cc:  Gregg R. Bodnar
Robert Guttman, Esq.
Seth Diehl
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Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Mailstop 3561
Washington, D.C. 20549
Attention: H. Christopher Owings
Scott Anderegg

Re: Ulta Salon, Cosmetics & Fragrance, Inc. — Amendment No. 7
Registration Statement on Form S-1
File No. 333-144405

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On behalf of Ulta Salon, Cosmetics & Fragrance, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “ Company”), we hereby transmit for filing under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, Amendment No. 7 (the “Amendment”) to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (the “ Regqistration Statement”), including
certain exhibits. The Amendment reflects the responses of the Company to comments received from the Staff in a letter from H. Christopher Owings, dated
October 23, 2007 (the “Comment Letter”). Courtesy copies of this letter and the Amendment (specifically marked to show changes thereto) are being
submitted to the Staff by hand delivery.

Application
1. We note that you seek confidential treatment for the liquidated damages schedule in Section 1.2 of the Lease. It is not clear why confidential treatment is

appropriate for this entire provision. A confidential treatment request should cover only those words and phrases for which confidentiality is necessary and
supported by FOIA and applicable Commission rules. Please provide us with an analysis that specifically addresses why the disclosure of this entire provision
would be commercially harmful to you. Further, ensure that your discussion addresses any commercial harm that may ensue to you, as opposed to the
Landlord. Refer to Section II.C.1 of Staff Legal Bulletin No. 1 (February 29, 1997).

Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have re-filed the Lease (Exhibit 10.15) in the Amendment. Instead of redacting the entire liquidated damages
schedule in Section 1.2, we
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have, for the reasons set forth in our confidential treatment request letter dated September 27, 2007, redacted only the dollar amounts and the “Fixturing Entry Date”
set forth in such schedule. As explained in our confidential treatment request letter and as discussed on the telephone with Scott Anderegg on October 16, 2007, the
“Fixturing Entry Date” is equivalent to a financial term because it relates to a free rent period.

2. We note that exhibit 10.15 refers to exhibits. Please file a complete copy of the lease with exhibits and revise your request, if applicable.

Response: In response to the Staff’s comment, we have filed a complete copy of the Lease with exhibits. We have redacted from the exhibits two pricing terms which
are duplicative of identical pricing terms successfully redacted in the body of the Lease.

If you have any questions regarding the foregoing responses or the enclosed Amendment or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact
me at (312) 876-7680 or Seth Diehl at (312) 876-7634.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Christopher D. Lueking
Christopher D. Lueking
of LATHAM & WATKINS LLP

Enclosures
cc:  Gregg R. Bodnar

Robert Guttman, Esq.
Seth Diehl



